THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY MET IN REGULAR SESSION ON THIS DATE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT:

Present: James Ward, Deborah Martin (Absent), Donald Wuertz

8:00 AM - Duncan Whitney - Delaware County Prosecutor

8:30 AM - Dale Wilgus - Investment Committee

10:00 AM - Bid Opening for Sale of Timber

10:15 AM – Bid Opening for Janitorial and Custodial Services for the County Engineers' Complex and the Wolf Building

RESOLUTION NO. 00-566

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING HELD JULY 10, 2000:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to dispense with the reading of the minutes and resolutions of the regular meeting held July 10, 2000, and to approve resolutions and minutes as submitted.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye

PUBLIC COMMENT

Judge Hoague spoke regarding his directive to change the fine wavier schedule. He will rescind his order of change.

RESOLUTION NO. 00-567

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING FOR PAYMENT WARRANTS NUMBERED 277094 THROUGH 277696:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve for payment warrants 277094 through 277696 on file in the office of the Delaware County Commissioners.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-568

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING TRAVEL EXPENSE REQUESTS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

Emergency Services is requesting that Larry Fisher, Pearline Howald and David Hall attend the Risk/Threat Assessment Training Course at Columbus on July 25 through July 27, 2000, at no charge.

Sanitary Engineer is requesting that Mark Spence, John Hickman and Frank Vance attend the Gas Piping Seminar at Trotwood, Ohio on October 10, 2000, in the amount of \$60.00.

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent

RESOLUTION NO. 00-569

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING TRANSFER OF FUNDS, APPROPRIATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by $\,$ Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS

FUND NUMBER:	FUND NAME:	AMOU	NT:
001-0130-020	General Fund/Facilities - Srvs & Chrgs	\$	7,000.00
015-7030-015	Litter Grant - Mat & Sup	\$	742.00
015-7030-020	Litter Grant - Srvs & Chrgs	\$	1,258.00

TRANSFER OF APP	ROPRIATION				
FROM:		TO:		AMOUN'	Γ:
003-4520-040		003-4550-040		\$	3,995.00
Hum Srvrs/Child Protect	ctive - Equip	Hum Srvrs/Admin - Eq	uip	·	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
015-7030-011		015-7030-010		\$	500.00
Litter Grant - Benefits		Litter Grant - Salaries			
015-7030-011		015-7030-013		\$	18.50
Litter Grant - Benefits		Litter Grant - Medicare			
015-7030-011		015-7030-015		\$	139.50
Litter Grant - Benefits		Litter Grant - Mat & Su	ıp		
015-7030-012		015-7030-015		\$	368.50
Litter Grant - PERS		Litter Grant - Mat & Su	ıp		
Vote on Motion	Mrs. Martin	Absent Mr. Ward	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-570

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT FOR MAXTOWN ROAD WIDENING AT REGENCY DRIVE:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the Subdivider's Agreement:

SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT executed on this 17th day of July, 2000 between ROMANELLI AND HUGHES BUILDING COMPANY as evidenced by the MAXTOWN ROAD WIDENING AT REGENCY DRIVE Subdivision Plat to be filed with the Delaware County Recorder, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO is governed by the following considerations to wit:

Said **SUBDIVIDER** is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this **AGREEMENT**; said **SUBDIVIDER** is to execute bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of construction as shown in the Engineer's Estimates approved 6/6/00 which is acceptable to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** to insure faithful performance of this **AGREEMENT** and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the **Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio.** The **SUBDIVIDER** shall pay the entire cost and expense of said improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and save harmless the **County, Townships and/or Villages** and all of their officials, employees or agents from all claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any actions or omissions of any contractor or subcontractor or from any material, including explosives, or any method used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one year from the date on which this **AGREEMENT** is executed by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading plans and specifications and shall have the authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the **COUNTY**, The representative shall be replaced by the **SUBDIVIDER** when, in the opinion of the **COUNTY**, his performance is deemed inadequate.

The **SUBDIVIDER** further agrees that any violations of or noncompliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this **AGREEMENT** shall constitute a breach of contract, and the **COUNTY** shall have the right to sto work forthwith and act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this subdivision.

ROADWAY AND STORM DRAINAGE

It is further agreed that upon execution of the **AGREEMENT**, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall deposit **TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS** estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the **Delaware County Engineer** and, if deemed necessary by the **Delaware County Engineer**, testing by an independent testing laboratory. When the fund has been depleted to **thirty percent** (30%) of the original amount deposited, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall replenish the account, upon notice by the **Delaware County Engineer**. Upon completion and acceptance of the construction, the remaining amount in the fund shall be returned to the **SUBDIVIDER**, with the exception of a nominal amount for the final inspection at the end of the maintenance period.

Upon the completion of construction, the SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair or reconstruction of any and all defective materials or workman-ship for a period of one year. Said SUBDIVIDER'S bond or certified check or irrevocable letter of credit may be reduced to an amount estimated by the County Engineer for said maintenance. The reduction may be approved only after the County Engineer has been provided evidence that all work has been accomplished according to the approved plan and/or to the County Engineer's satisfaction. All work is to be done in accordance to the Ohio Department of Transportation Specifications.

Acceptance of the roads and drainage structures in said subdivision into the public system shall be completed only after written notice to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS from the County Engineer of his approval. The SUBDIVIDER'S maintenance responsibility as described above shall be completed upon formal acceptance by the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS.

Any snow or ice removal or other safety requirements deemed necessary by the County Engineer during the period of construction or maintenance shall be the responsibility of the SUBDIVIDER. All of the funds set forth in the AGREEMENT shall be made available to the County Engineer to ensure proper safety compliance.

CONSTRUCTION

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days following the completion of construction and prior to final acceptance, furnish to **Delaware County**, as required, "as built" drawings of the improvements, which plans shall become the property of the **County** and remain in the office of the **Delaware County Engineer.**

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the **County** an itemized statement showing the cost of improvements and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and hold harmless the **County** from expenses or claims for labor or material incident to said construction of improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of the improvements and for their continued operation. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for all-utility charges and installation costs. The utility user charges shall be paid by the **SUBDIVIDER** and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the **County.**

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions and requirements of this AGREEMENT.

In consideration whereof, the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO, hereby grants the SUBDIVIDER or his agent, the right and privileges to make the improvements stipulated herein.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-571

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE EXTENSION OF SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT FOR BERKSHIRE DEVELOPMENT:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the extension of the subdivider's agreement:

On June 28, 1999, the Board entered into a Subdivider's Agreement with Berkshire Development Company for the referenced project. At that time, the developer posted a cash bond to cover the cost of this work.

Due to contractor scheduling problems, they have been unable to complete this work in the one-year time frame as spelled out in the Agreement. Therefore, the developer has requested an extension of time to complete this work until December 30, 2000.

Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Subdivider's Agreement be extended until December 30, 2000.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-572

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING RIGHT OF WAY WORK PERMIT SUMMARY SHEET:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

Permit #	Applicant	Location	Type of Work
U000082	Columbia Gas	Westerville Reserve	Install gas mains
U000083	General Telephone	Kilbourne Road	Relocate cable
U000084	Columbia Gas	Harvest Wind Section 5	Install gas mains

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING COMPENSATION FOR EASEMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND /OR TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR TUSSIC STREET ROAD:

It was move by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

Whereas, additional land is needed for road purposes on Tussic Roads in Delaware County, Ohio, and

Whereas, property owner has been contacted, and reasonable purchase agreement for public right-of-way have been determined and agreed upon, and

Whereas, the following property owner has committed to accept payment as indicated in documentation below to be just and equitable for land taken and damages sustained by reason of the improvements for Tussic Roads, Delaware County, Ohio

THIS AGREEMENT made at Delaware, Ohio, on the last date of acceptance by and between Gerald F. and Marilynn I Coe, hereinafter called the "SELLERS", and the County of Delaware, State of Ohio, hereinafter designated the "BUYER", witnesseth:

1. Sellers agree to sell and convey and the Buyer agrees to purchase and pay for a permanent easement for highway purposes a part of the land located at 6977 Tussic Street, Westerville, Delaware County, Ohio, and more particularly described as follows:

SEE ATTACHED LEGAL DESCRIPTION

2. The Sellers further agree to sell and convey, and the Buyer agrees to purchase and pay for a temporary easement for highway construction purposes over the lands located at 6977 Tussic Street, Westerville, Delaware County, Ohio, and more particularly described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT "A"

- 3. The purchase price for both the permanent easements including all damages is two thousand two hundred and fifty dollars (\$2,250.00), payable at closing.
- 4. Possession will be at Closing.
- 5. The closing of this purchase shall take place within 30 days of the acceptance of this contract by the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, State of Ohio, at a regular session of the Board, and entering of the agreement in the minutes of the Board by the Clerk of said Board.
- 6. The Buyer also agrees to the following additional items of consideration:
 - A. Modify plans to cover ditch along entire length of property.
- 7. All parties to this contract, acknowledge that the Delaware County Engineer, Christian E. Bauserman, P.E./P.S. is, in negotiating this contract, acting as an agent on behalf of the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, Ohio. The parties, further, acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall not be binding until it is approved by the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, Ohio at a regular session of the Board. Attached hereto is a certificate by the Auditor of Delaware County, Ohio, as required by Section 5705.41 of the Ohio Revised Code. Christian E. Bauserman, P.E./P.S., Delaware County Engineer, agrees that upon signing of this Agreement by the SELLERS he will take appropriate steps to have this purchase Agreement acted upon properly by the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, Ohio at their next regularly scheduled meeting.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-574

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE ESTIMATE AND PLANS FOR REPLACEMENT OF NORTH OLD 3C BRIDGE:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following estimate and plans.

North Old 3C Bridge Estimate \$68,016.29

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-575

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SANITARY SEWER PLAN IN HIGHLAND LAKES

NORTH, SECTION 7:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the sanitary sewer plans for Highland Lakes North, Section 7 submittal to the Ohio EPA for their approval as per recommendation of the County Sanitary Engineer.

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent

RESOLUTION NO. 00-576

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SANITARY SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENTS FOR HIGHLAND HILLS AT THE LAKES, SECTION 2 AND HIGHLAND LAKES NORTH, SECTION 6, PHASE 2:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the Subsdivider's Agreements:

Highland Hills at the Lakes, Section 2

This agreement executed on this 17th day of July 2000, by and between PLANNED COMMUNITIES SUBDIVIDER, as evidenced by the HIGHLAND HILLS AT THE LAKES, SECTION 2 Subdivision Plat filed with the Delaware County Recorder, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of Delaware County, Ohio is governed by the following considerations and conditions, to wit:

The SUBDIVIDER shall upon executing this AGREEMENT, pay to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER \$138,650.00, representing the payment of fifty percent (50%) of the capacity charges then in effect, for each single family residential connection, for 47 equivalent single family residential connections. The remaining capacity charge shall be fifty percent (50%) of the rate currently in effect at the time connection is made and shall be paid for each single family residential connection upon application to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER for a tap permit to connect the single family residence to the sanitary sewer. Ownership of more than one (1) lot will not cause aggregation of the payments.

Said SUBDIVIDER is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this AGREEMENT; said SUBDIVIDER is to execute Bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of construction (\$126,000.00) which is acceptable to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS to insure faithful performance of this AGREEMENT and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio. The SUBDIVIDER shall pay the entire cost and expense of said improvements.

The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and save harmless the County, Townships and/or Villages and all of their officials, employees and agents for mall claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any action, or omissions of any contractor or sub-contractor or from any material, method or explosive used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one (1) year from the date of the approval of said Subdivider by the County Commissioners but extension of time may be granted if approved by the County Commissioners.

The SUBDIVIDER shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading the plans and specifications and shall have authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the COUNTY. The representative shall be replaced by the Subdivider, when in the opinion of the COUNTY, his performance is deemed inadequate.

The SUBDIVIDER further agrees that any violations of or noncompliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a breach of contract, and the County shall have the right to stop work forthwith and act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this Subdivision.

SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION

It is further agreed that upon execution of the Agreement, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit, with the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER the sum of \$7,500.00 estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER. The DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER shall in his sole discretion inspect, as necessary, the IMPROVEMENTS being installed or constructed by the SUBDIVIDER and shall keep accurate records of the time spent by his employees and agents in such inspections for which the SANITARY ENGINEER shall be reimbursed from charges against said deposit. At such time as said fund, as result of charges against the same at the rate of:

INSPECTOR \$60.00 CAMERA TRUCK \$150.00

per hour for time spent by said SANITARY ENGINEER or his staff has been depleted to a level of less than \$1,000.00, the SUBDIVIDER shall make an additional deposit of \$1,000.00 to said fund. On completion of all IMPROVEMENTS provided herein and acceptance of same by the COUNTY, any unused portions of the inspection fund shall be repaid to the SUBDIVIDER less an amount equal to \$0.50 per foot of sewer which will be deducted to cover the one year reinspection.

The SUBDIVIDER for a period of five (5) year after acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS by the COUNTY, shall be responsible for defective materials and or workmanship. All warranties for equipment installed as part of the IMPROVEMENTS shall be the same as new equipment warranties and shall be assigned to the COUNTY upon acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The subdivider shall provide to the COUNTY all necessary easements or right of ways required to complete the IMPROVEMENTS all of which shall be obtained at the expense of the SUBDIVIDER.

The COUNTY shall upon certification in writing from the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER that all construction is complete according to the plans and specifications by Resolution accept the IMPROVEMENTS described herein and accept and assume operations and maintenance of the same.

ALL CONSTRUCTION UNDER COUNTY JURISDICTION

The Subdivider shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to Delaware County as required, as built drawings on the IMPROVEMENTS which plans shall become the property of the County and shall remain in the office of the Delaware County Sanitary Engineer and Delaware County Engineer. The drawings shall be on reproducible Mylar and 3.5@ or 5.25@ Diskettes in either Autocade DWG files or DXF files.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the COUNTY an itemized statement showing the cost of IMPROVEMENTS and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY from expenses or claims for labor or materials incident to said construction of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER a five (5) year maintenance Bond or other approved financial warranties, equal to ten percent (10%) of the construction cost.

The SUBDIVIDER shall during the construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the COUNTY regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The SUBDIVIDER shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of said IMPROVEMENTS AND FOR THEIR CONTINUED OPERATION. The SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all-utility charges and installation costs. The utility user charges shall be paid by the SUBDIVIDER and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the COUNTY.

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this AGREEMENT.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, the DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS hereby grants the SUBDIVIDER or his agent the right and privilege to make the IMPROVEMENTS stipulated herein and as shown on the approved plans.

Highland Lakes North, Section 6, Phase 2

This agreement executed on this 17th day of July 2000, by and between PLANNED COMMUNITIES SUBDIVIDER, as evidenced by the HIGHLAND LAKES NORTH, SECTION 6, PHASE 2 Subdivision Plat filed with the Delaware County Recorder, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of Delaware County, Ohio is governed by the following considerations and conditions, to wit:

The SUBDIVIDER shall upon executing this AGREEMENT, pay to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER \$53,100.00, representing the payment of fifty percent (50%) of the capacity charges then in effect, for each single family residential connection, for 18 equivalent single family residential connections. The remaining capacity charge shall be fifty percent (50%) of the rate currently in effect at the time connection is made and shall be paid for each single family residential connection upon application to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER for a tap permit to connect the single family residence to the sanitary sewer. Ownership of more than one (1) lot will not cause aggregation of the payments.

Said SUBDIVIDER is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this AGREEMENT; said SUBDIVIDER is to execute Bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of construction (\$29,670.00) which is acceptable to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS to insure faithful performance of this AGREEMENT and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio. The SUBDIVIDER shall pay the entire cost and expense of said improvements.

The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and save harmless the County, Townships and/or Villages and all of their officials, employees and agents for mall claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any action, or omissions of any contractor or sub-contractor or from any material, method or explosive used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one (1) year from the date of the approval of said Subdivider by the County Commissioners but extension of time may be granted if approved by the County Commissioners.

The SUBDIVIDER shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading the plans and specifications and shall have authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the COUNTY. The representative shall be replaced by the Subdivider, when in the opinion of the COUNTY, his performance is deemed inadequate.

The SUBDIVIDER further agrees that any violations of or noncompliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a breach of contract, and the County shall have the right to stop work forthwith and act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this Subdivision.

SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION

It is further agreed that upon execution of the Agreement, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit, with the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER the sum of \$1,780.00 estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER. The DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER shall in his sole discretion inspect, as necessary, the IMPROVEMENTS being installed or constructed by the SUBDIVIDER and shall keep accurate records of the time spent by his employees and agents in such inspections for which the SANITARY ENGINEER shall be reimbursed from charges against said deposit. At such time as said fund, as result of charges against the same at the rate of:

INSPECTOR \$60.00 CAMERA TRUCK \$150.00

per hour for time spent by said SANITARY ENGINEER or his staff has been depleted to a level of less than \$1,000.00, the SUBDIVIDER shall make an additional deposit of \$1,000.00 to said fund. On completion of all IMPROVEMENTS provided herein and acceptance of same by the COUNTY, any unused portions of the inspection fund shall be repaid to the SUBDIVIDER less an amount equal to \$0.50 per foot of sewer which will be deducted to cover the one year reinspection.

The SUBDIVIDER for a period of five (5) year after acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS by the COUNTY, shall be responsible for defective materials and or workmanship. All warranties for equipment installed as part of the IMPROVEMENTS shall be the same as new equipment warranties and shall be assigned to the COUNTY upon acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The subdivider shall provide to the COUNTY all necessary easements or right of ways required to complete the IMPROVEMENTS all of which shall be obtained at the expense of the SUBDIVIDER.

The COUNTY shall upon certification in writing from the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER that all construction is complete according to the plans and specifications by Resolution accept the IMPROVEMENTS described herein and accept and assume operations and maintenance of the same.

ALL CONSTRUCTION UNDER COUNTY JURISDICTION

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to DELAWARE COUNTY as required, as built drawings on the IMPROVEMENTS which plans shall become the property of the COUNTY and shall remain in the office of the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER and DELAWARE COUNTY ENGINEER. The drawings shall be on reproducible Mylar and 3.5@ or 5.25@ Diskettes in either Autocade DWG files or DXF files.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the COUNTY an itemized statement showing the cost of IMPROVEMENTS and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY from expenses or claims for labor or

materials incident to said construction of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER a five (5) year maintenance Bond or other approved financial warranties, equal to ten percent (10%) of the construction cost.

The SUBDIVIDER shall during the construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the COUNTY regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The SUBDIVIDER shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of said IMPROVEMENTS AND FOR THEIR CONTINUED OPERATION. The SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. The utility user charges shall be paid by the SUBDIVIDER and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the COUNTY.

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this AGREEMENT.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, the DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS hereby grants the SUBDIVIDER or his agent the right and privilege to make the IMPROVEMENTS stipulated herein and as shown on the approved plans.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-577

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING PERSONNEL ACTIONS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following actions:

Karin L. Eldredge has accepted the position of part-time Records Clerk for the Records Center; effective date of hire is July 24, 2000.

Stephen Dick and Michael Gallion, as Med Tech I, have completed their probationary period for EMS; effective dates of wage increases are July 19 and July 29, 2000.

Tom Grewell has been certified as a Med Tech II for EMS; effective date of wage increase is June 24, 2000.

Yvette Hatten has completed her probationary period as TCO II for 9-1-1; effective date of wage increase is July 8, 2000.

Johannes Dickoff, Patrick Pennington and Michele Rinard, as Med Tech II, have completed their one-year anniversary and are eligible for wage increases for EMS; effective dates of wage increases are June 10, 12 and June 15, 2000.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-578

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE FY 2000 REVISED GENESIS CONTRACT FOR DELAWARE COUNTY AGENCIES:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following contract:

Whereas, the Delaware County Department of Jobs and Family Services, the Delaware County Juvenile Court, and the Delaware-Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board wish to purchase Genesis Foster Treatment Services from the Central Ohio Mental Health Center, they enter into the following joint agreement.

Service to be Provided:

The Genesis Network provides foster treatment services to youth from both Morrow and Delaware Counties. **Delaware-Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board Financial Support of the Genesis Program:**

In FY'00 (July 1, 2000- June 30, 2001) the Delaware–Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board will provide up to \$94,050.00 in funding to the Genesis Network in Delaware and Morrow Counties. The Center's contract with the Delaware-Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board allows for payment of up to 4,380 client days during FY' 2001. The Delaware-Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board's

payment per youth per day shall be \$21.48.

Term of the Agreement:

This Agreement shall be in effect from June 30, 2000 to September 30, 2000.

Assignment of Costs and Method of Payment:

The actual cost per youth per day to be charged for each youth in placement will be \$77.78 during the period between June 30, 2000, and September 30, 2000.

The Center will complete the needed documentation to determine a IV-E payment rate.

After the last day of each month, and prior to the 15th day of the following month, the Central Ohio Mental Health Center shall submit a statement to the party with financial responsibility (as outlined on the Genesis Fee Agreement Form) detailing the cost of each youth in placement. This statement will reflect the cost/youth minus payment by the Delaware-Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board (\$21.48/day). The net cost/day is \$56.30. If all Delaware-Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board funds have been expended, the cost will be computed at the full rate (\$77.78/day). The Central Ohio Mental Health will notify the funding parties at least 30 days in advance of depletion of Delaware-Morrow Mental Health and Recovery Services Board funds. Upon receipt of this statement, the party with financial responsibility will pay the Central Ohio Mental Health Center within thirty (30) days.

Computation of Placement Days

Billing for each youth in placement shall reflect the first day of placement, but shall not include the last day of placement. Youths that are absent from their placement (e.g. hospitalized, absent without leave, in JDC, etc.) shall have their bed held for them for seven calendar days, six of which are billable days.

Acceptance of Youth into Placement

Before placement can be considered, the referring agency must complete required referral forms including the Genesis Fee Agreement (See Attachment A).

Only referrals which meet admission criteria will be considered for placement.

Referring Agency Support Services

Referring Agency agrees to:

Provide pertinent medical, psychological, and behavioral information

Communicate any concerns, unusual incidents, or behavioral problems in coordinating service,

Provide a 24-hour emergency telephone number

Provide adequate clothing for placement by providing items included on the Clothing List

Authorize the Genesis Network to obtain necessary medical, dental, and optical care for the foster child (Advance approval will be required for any orthodontic work needed by the child)

Discharge from Placement

The Central Ohio Mental Health Center will notify the Referring Agency when the foster child no longer requires the level of care provided in the network or requires a higher level of care.

Resolution of Disputes

Be it understood that in the matter of policy difficulties, the Center and other parties will attempt to resolve disputes through negotiation. If this is unsuccessful, disputes shall be resolved through mediation.

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent

RESOLUTION NO. 00-579

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE CONTRACTS BETWEEN THE DELAWARE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF JOBS AND FAMILY SERVICES AND CHILDREN'S WORLD LEARNING CENTER #492; CHILDREN'S WORLD LEARNING CENTER CH WORLD LEARNING CENTER #720 SNOUFFER; CHILDREN'S WORLD LEARNING CENTER WORTHINGTON WOODS; KINDER CARE LEARNING CENTER; KINDER CARE LEARNING CENTER #0999; LEARNING ENRICHMENT CENTER AND LIBERTY COMMUNITY CENTER:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following contracts:

Children's World Learning Center #492

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Children's World Learning Center #492, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 72 Westerville Dr., Westerville, OH 43081. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. **PURCHASE OF SERVICES**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs, and (C) Protective child care services.
- 2. **CONTRACT PERIOD**: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

Basic Rates: All Rates are Per Day

Full Time: (5 o	<u>r more h</u>	ours)			Part hours	Time:	(less	than 5
					nours	1		
Infant		\$28.40				\$19.0	00	
Toddler	\$24.00				\$16.00)		
Preschool		\$21.20				\$14.2	20	
Kindergarten		\$19.60				\$13.0	00	
School Age (no	school)	\$19.60				\$13.0	00	
School Days	5 days		4 days	3 days		2 day	'S	1 day
Before School	\$11.00		\$12.75	\$13.00		\$13.0	00	\$13.00
After School	\$13.00		\$13.00	\$13.00		\$13.0	00	\$13.00
Before & After	\$14.80		\$16.75	\$18.67		\$19.6	50	\$19.60

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances:
Deposits: Discounts:
Transportation: One way Round trip
Other (Please Specify):

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider Eighteen (18) absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. <u>BILLING PROCEDURES:</u> The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit _____, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.

- (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
- (B) **Responsibility For Repayment:** The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
 - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
 - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. <u>ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:</u> The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. **ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:**

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

(1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:

X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).

Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide child care in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code, which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this

contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.

- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. <u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u> The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.
- 12. <u>LICENSURE STATUS:</u> The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) <u>Insurance:</u> Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is (are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>Customary Charge:</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated

in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Children's World Learning Center Charring Cross

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Children's World Learning Center Charring Cross, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 574 Charring Cross, Westerville 43081. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. **PURCHASE OF SERVICES**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.
- 2. <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

Basic Rates: All Rates are Per Day

Full Time: (5 o	r more h	ours)			Part hours)	Time:	(less	than 5
Infant		\$28.40				\$19.0	00	
Toddler	\$24.00				\$16.00)		
Preschool		\$21.20				\$14.2	20	
Kindergarten		\$19.60				\$13.0	00	
School Age (no	school)	\$19.60				\$13.0	00	
School Days	5 days		4 days	3 days		2 day	S	1 day
Before School	\$10.80		\$12.25	\$13.00		\$13.0	00	\$13.00
After School	\$12.80		\$13.00	\$13.00		\$13.0	00	\$13.00
Before & After	\$14.00		\$16.00	\$18.67		\$19.6	50	\$19.60

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances: Deposits: Discounts:

Registration Fees: \$25.00

Transportation: One way Round trip

Other (Please Specify):

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider Eighteen (18) absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **<u>BILLING PROCEDURES:</u>** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit _____, if

applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.

- (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
- (B) Responsibility For Repayment: The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
 - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
 - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. <u>ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:</u> The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. <u>ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:</u>

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
- X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)). Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period

of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.

- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **CIVIL RIGHTS:** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.
- 12. <u>LICENSURE STATUS:</u> The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) <u>Insurance</u>: Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. <u>Monitoring:</u> The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract

17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.

18. <u>Customary Charge:</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Children's World Learning Center #720 Snouffer

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Children's World Learning Center #720 Snouffer, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 3480 Snouffer Road, Worthington, OH 43235 and whose telephone number is (614) 792-6566. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. **PURCHASE OF SERVICES**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.
- 2. **CONTRACT PERIOD**: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

Basic Rates: All Rates are Per Day

Full Time: (5 o	r more h	<u>ours)</u>			Part	Time:	(less	than	<u>5</u>
					hours)			
Infant		\$28.40				\$19.0	00		
Toddler	\$24.00				\$16.0	0			
Preschool		\$21.20				\$14.2	20		
Kindergarten		\$19.60				\$13.0	00		
School Age (no	school)	\$19.60				\$13.0	00		
School Days	5 days		4 days	3 days		2 day	S	1 day	
Before School	\$9.80		\$11.00	\$12.67		\$13.0	00 \$	\$13.00	
After School	\$12.20		\$13.00	\$13.00		\$13.0	00 \$	\$13.00	
Before & After	\$13.80		\$15.50	\$18.00		\$19.6	50 \$	\$19.60	

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances: Deposits: Discounts:

Registration Fees: \$25.00

Transportation: One way Round trip

Other (Please Specify):

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **<u>BILLING PROCEDURES:</u>** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making

payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.

- (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
- (B) Responsibility For Repayment: The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
 - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
 - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. <u>ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:</u> The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. <u>ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:</u>

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
 - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).

Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the

maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.

- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **CIVIL RIGHTS:** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.
- 12. <u>LICENSURE STATUS:</u> The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.
- 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**
 - (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
 - (B) <u>Insurance</u>: Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>Customary Charge:</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated

in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Children's World Learning Center Worthington Woods

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Children's World Learning Center Worthington Woods, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 600 Worthington Woods Blvd, Worthington, OH 43085 and whose telephone number is (614) 785-0050. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. <u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), child care services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs, and (C) Protective child care services.
- <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later.
 Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

Basic Rates: All Rates are Per Day

Full Time: (5 o	r more h	ours)			Part hours	<u>Time:</u>	(less	than 5
Infant		\$28.40				\$19.0	00	
Toddler	\$24.00				\$16.0	0		
Preschool		\$21.20				\$14.2	20	
Kindergarten		\$19.60				\$13.0	00	
School Age (no	school)	\$19.60				\$13.0	00	
School Days	5 days		4 days	3 da	ays	2 day	S	1 day
Before School	\$11.00		\$12.50	\$13	5.00	\$13.0	00	\$13.00
After School	\$12.60		\$13.00	\$13	5.00	\$13.0	00	\$13.00
Before & After	\$15.20		\$17.25	\$19	.60	\$19.6	50	
								\$1
								9.6
								0

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances: Deposits: Discounts:

Registration Fees: \$25.00

Transportation: One way Round trip

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider Eighteen (18) absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **BILLING PROCEDURES:** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days

following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit _____, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.

- (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
- (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
 - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
 - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. **ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:**

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
 - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).

Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded childcare benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.

- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. <u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u> The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.
- 12. <u>LICENSURE STATUS:</u> The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) <u>Insurance:</u> Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. <u>Monitoring:</u> The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. <u>Termination:</u> This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by

the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.

Customary Charge: In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated 18. in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Kinder Care Learning Center

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Human Services ("Department") and Kinder Care Learning Center, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 96 Neverland Dr., Lewis Center, OH, and whose telephone number is (740) 549-0264. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. PURCHASE OF SERVICES: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs, and (C) Protective child care services.
- 2. **CONTRACT PERIOD**: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- **CONTRACT SERVICES**: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training 3. and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

4. **COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES:**

(A) Payment Rates: The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit _____ _, if applicable).

(1)	Basic Rates:	(All Rates are Per Day)	
	Full Time: (5	or more hours)	Part Time: (less than 5 hours)
	Infants	\$25.00	\$17.20
	Toddlers	\$22.40	\$15.00
	Preschool	\$20.00	\$13.40
	School age	\$19.00	\$12.60

(2) Adjustments to Basic Rates: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances:

Deposits: Discounts:

Registration Fees: \$25.00

Other (Please Specify):

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider Eighteen (18) absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) Fees: The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. BILLING PROCEDURES: The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit _, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
 - (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for

authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.

- (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
 - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
 - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. <u>ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:</u> The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. **ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:**

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
 - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).

Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded childcare benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code, which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has

been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.

- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. <u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u> The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.
- 12. <u>LICENSURE STATUS:</u> The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

13. <u>INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:</u>

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) <u>Insurance</u>: Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. <u>Monitoring:</u> The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party. The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>Customary Charge:</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Kinder Care Learning Center #0999

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Kinder Care Learning Center #0999, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 55 South Cleveland Ave., Westerville, OH 43081 and whose telephone number is (614) 899-0026. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. **PURCHASE OF SERVICES**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.
- 2. **CONTRACT PERIOD**: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

Basic Rates: Full Time: (5 o		es are Per <u>ours)</u>	r Day		Part 1 hours)	Sime: (less	than 5
Infant		\$28.40				\$19.00	
Toddler	\$24.00				\$16.00		
Preschool		\$21.20				\$14.20	
School Age (no	school)	\$19.60				\$13.00	
School Days	5 days		4 days	3 days		2 days	1 day
Before School	\$9.80		\$12.25	\$12.33		\$13.00	\$13.00
After School	\$10.80		\$13.00	\$13.00		\$13.00	\$13.00
Before & After	\$12.20		\$15.25	\$15.33		\$18.50	\$18.00

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances: Deposits: Discounts:

Registration Fees: \$25.00

Transportation: One way Round trip

Other (Please Specify):

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider Eighteen (18) absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. <u>BILLING PROCEDURES:</u> The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit _, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
 - (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against

other funding sources for the same services.

- (B) Responsibility For Repayment: The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
 - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
 - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. <u>ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:</u> The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. **ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:**

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
 - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).

Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded childcare benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.

- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. <u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u> The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.
- 12. <u>LICENSURE STATUS:</u> The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

13. <u>INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:</u>

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) <u>Insurance</u>: Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. **Amendment of Contract:** This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>Customary Charge:</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Learning Enrichment Center, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 1255 Countyline Road, Westerville, OH and whose telephone number is (614) 901-4000. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. **PURCHASE OF SERVICES**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.
- 2. **CONTRACT PERIOD**: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.
- 4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

Basic Rates: All Rates are Per Day
Full Time: (5 or more hours)

<u>Part Time: (less than 5 hours)</u>

Infant		\$28.40		\$19.00
Toddler	\$24.00		\$16.00	
Preschool		\$21.20		\$14.20
School Age ((no school)	\$19.60		\$13.00
Before or Af	ter School	\$6.50		
After School		\$9.50		

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances: Deposits: Discounts:

Registration Fees: \$25.00

Transportation: One way Round trip

Other (Please Specify):

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider Eighteen (18) absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. <u>BILLING PROCEDURES:</u> The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit _, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
 - (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
 - (B) Responsibility For Repayment: The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this

contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:

- (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
- (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. **ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:**

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
 - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).

Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS:</u> Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide child care in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.

- 11. <u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u> The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.
- 12. <u>LICENSURE STATUS:</u> The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

13. <u>INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:</u>

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract
- (B) <u>Insurance</u>: Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is (are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. **Amendment of Contract:** This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>Customary Charge:</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Liberty Community Center

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Liberty Community Center, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 207 London Road, Delaware, OH 43015 and whose telephone number is (740) 369-3876. Chapter 5104. of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides,

licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

- 1. <u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), child care services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs, and (C) Protective child care services.
- 2. <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.
- 4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

Basic Rates: All Rates are Per Day

Full Time: (5 or more h	ours)	Part 7	Гіте:	(less	than	5
		<u>hours)</u>				
Infant	\$25.00		\$17.2	20		
Toddler \$22.40		\$15.00				
Preschool	\$20.00		\$13.4	10		
School Age (no school)	\$18.00		\$11.6	50		
Before or After School	\$7.00					
Before & After School	\$12.60					

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Advances:
Deposits: Discounts:

Registration Fees: \$25.00

Transportation: One way Round trip

Other (Please Specify):

- (3) Absentee Payment Policy: The Department will reimburse the Provider Eighteen (18) absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **BILLING PROCEDURES:** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit _, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
 - (A) <u>Duplicate Billing:</u> The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
 - (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
 - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and

- (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

7. **ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:**

(A) **Eligibility Determinations:**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
 - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).

Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS:</u> Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded childcare benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. <u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u> The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin,

handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) <u>Insurance</u>: Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is (are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. **Amendment of Contract:** This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>Customary Charge:</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Absent Mr. Wuertz Aye

PRESENTATION – NANCY BENDLE – MASTER GARDENER PROGRAM

10:00 AM- Bid Opening for Sale of Timber

None

Fort's Cleaning Services		
South Wing Engineer- supplies included South Wing Engineer- without supplies Wolf Building- supplies included Wolf Building- without supplies	\$1,385.25 Mo. \$1,109.25 Mo. \$2,375.00 Mo. \$1,975.00 Mo.	
J & L Janitorial Services		
South Wing Engineer- supplies included South Wing Engineer- without supplies Wolf Building- supplies included Wolf Building- without supplies	\$1,929.00 Mo. \$1,756.00 Mo. \$2,425.00 Mo. \$2,145.00 Mo.	
Delaware Maintenance Company		
South Wing Engineer- supplies included South Wing Engineer- without supplies Wolf Building- supplies included Wolf Building- without supplies	\$1,600.00 Mo. \$1,100.00 Mo. \$2,300.00 Mo. \$1,800.00 Mo.	
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.		
	Deborah Martin	
	James D. Ward	
	Donald Wuertz	
Letha George, Clerk to the Commissioners		